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Every Eurapean historic city has experienced that difficult moment when, under the pressure of
the vehemently asserted requirements of modern times, buildings that were ancient and dilzpi-
dated but of greal architectural value began to vanish. Sooner or laler, the sad image of such
demolitions would provoke at first individuals and, directly afterwards, groups of people to oppose
what appeared to be the irreversible desliny of the cities™ decaying elements. Their efforts ware
often to no avail, just as the methods of their struggle were at times naive. Nevertheless, such
opposition awakened the public’s consciousness to the idea of whal an architectural monument
was, and why its preservation value went beyond the feelings of a sclect group of admirers of the
antiques encompassing the cultural wealth of a nation and Its future penerations. In Prague, this
critical moment arose in the 1890s. In 1900 the Society For Old Prague was founded, and since
then many generations of its members have tirelessly contributed to enlightening the general pub-
lic to the advantages of protecting architectural manuments and the ¢ity’s unique historic image.
We are delighted today by this appertunity to presentl in Paris the more than one-hundred-
year long endeavour of our predecessors, in co-operation with and under the auspices of a society
of an zllied cause; all the more so since the Sociely For Old Prague had, In its early years, enjoyed
an exceptionally strong relationship with the French cultural environment. This relationship was
established Lhrough Czech arlists’ time-honoured links with Paris - represented in particular, in
the context of the Seciety, by the painter Zdenka Braunerové and the friendship between Vilém
Mr3tik and the Swiss writer William Ritter, who was enchanted by Frague and became somewhat
of a French language spokesman and supporter of the city and the For Ofd Prague movement in
several Eurgpean counidries. Influenced by these relationships, the Society developed an amicable
alliance with the Cammission for Old Paris (Commission pour vicux Paris). The delegation of this
Commission - led by M. Charles Normand, its member and, concurrently, president of the Alli-
ance of the Patrans of the Monuments of Pans (Société des amis des monuments de Panis) - vas




welcamed at the Sociely’s ceremonial meeting, organised an the 4% of July 1901 in Prague, Fol-
lewing this event, on December 15" 1902, Charles Narmand was appointed hanarary member
of the Seciety For Old Prague al its general assembly, for which accasion the Czech painter Jan
Koniipek, instructed by the Socsety, had designed an original diploma for M. Normand. Following
the birth of the independent Czechoslovak state, Ernst Denis, the historian and great autharity
an Czech history after whom the French Cultural Institute in Prague was named, also became an
honorary member of the Society.

Resuming these old friendships and numerous cullurzl links between Prague and Paris, the
Saciety For Old Prague dellghtedly welcomed the initiative of our friends from the Association for
the Conservation and Prometion of Historic Paris (I'assaciation de Sauvegarde et Mise en valeur du
Paris historique) to present this exhibition of the Society, the very first organised abroad, in their
exhibition hall and as part of the 2002 Czech Culturzl Season in France.

This offer is all the more valuable for us as an opportunity to strengthen the finks between
our two societies, which share a common gim: to pratect the legacy of the past for future genera-
tinns. And this heritage bocomes the property of us all, whether we are in Paris or in Prague.

KATERINA BECKOVA
President of the Society for Old Prague



Safeguarding and highlighting national heritage have always been, since its foundation, the ¢s-
sential values of the Association for the Conservation and Promolion of Historic Paris.

Founded in 1263, Lhe Associatian has attracted attention through its numerous actions for
the conservation of the Marais district in Paris. At the end of the Second Warld War, 1his district,
destined to be demolished because it was insalubrious, owed its renovatian o the tenacity and
the lucidity of a few volunteers who drew the altention of the authorities ta the state of decay of
nearly all the prestigious 17" century mansions.

As early a5 1962, these volunteers also created the Association for the Marais Festival 1o set
up various cultural events (plays, aperas, concerls set in the mansions’ courlyards).

This initiative aimed at sensilizing the general public and the polilical authorities to the fact
that it was essential to act Lo preserve the threatened urban, architectural and historical heritage.

The following year, André Malraux. then the Minister of Culture, had a law passed on the
pratected areas.

Historic Paris increases appeals to public funds, establishes an architectural inventory of
the 3™ and 4% districts and underiakes the renovation of mast historical siles of the Marais, bagin-
ning with the House of Ourscamp, which has since become its headquarters. Until the year 2000,
the Assaciation received many official awards for the various works that it still carries on.

Today, the Association for the Consenvation and Promotion of Historic Paris continues its
activities in the entire Paris area. It has more than 2500 members of which mare than 100 regular
volunteers and three employees.

In May 2001, in Prague, during 8 European meeting of Heritage Associations, the Heads of
Historic Paris and of the Kiub 2a Starou Prahu (~Socizty For Old Prague”) decided fo try a new “cul-
tural adventure™ together. They decided to arrange an exhibit in Parls, which through pho tographs,

10 will show some buildings that have given its present aspect to the cily of Prague and far which the




Kiub struggled ceasalessly for more than a century. Created at the beginning of the 20™ century,
the Kfub intends to protest against the demolition of buildings or historical housing in the heart of
old Prague. Its actians are backed by renowned architects and art historians.

Even if ane of our associations is run with the help of non-professional volunteers, and the
ather, by fine arts professionals and technicians, our two associations are nonetheless “sisters™.
Our ambitions and aims are undoubtedly similar.

Safeguarding and giving life to the urban heritage, so that future generations may also ap-
preciate it, as we are today conserving the undenizble treasures of the past.

In 2002, in France we celebrate the Czech Year. What a wonderful opportunity for us to
£0 back to our roots and sensitize once more the general public to its herilage and its ancient
neighbourhoods.

PIERRE HOUSIEAUX
President of the Association for the Conservation and Promotion of Historic Paris n



PRAGUE CAPUT REGNI In arder to convey the history and the contemporary characier
of the Seciety For Old Prague to @ Toreign audience, we must first of all introduce Prague, ihe
capital city of {he Czech Republic and the city in which the Society has established itsell. We
must express its unique beauly and the specific problems of ils preservation,

Goiden Prague, the Hundred-Spired Prague, Magic Prague - these are only same of the at-
tributes used 10 describe it, They relale to its specific features (such as its multitude of towers
and campaniles, in the Middle Ages oiten decorated with gilded tops), for il is only through their
interaction that the unique character of this city has besn created.

As early as the Middle Ages, Prague had already been designated as Lhe mother of all
cities - Praga Mator Urbium - or the head of the kingdom - Praga Caput Regnf - to mark its ex-
clusive position among Czech towns, as well as its profound bearing upon the history of the
entire country, (In those tfimes, Prague consisted of four separate settlements — the Qld Town,
Mala Strana, radGany with Prague Castle and the New Town - all ariginating from ihe Middle
Ages; autonomous and with their own fortifications, these towns were only united in 1784.) For
a thousand years, Prague’s most promiment aspect — Prague Castle with St Vitus® Cathedral
- was the seat of its poliical and religious power, while the Old and New Towns on the opposite
bank of the river Vitava functioned as the centre of trade and capital.

Situated in the very heart of Europe, at the peint of intersection of the ancient rade
routes, the city hecame an important gathering place of differenl epochs, peoples and cultures.
All the architectyral styles of Europe, from the Middle Ages to the present day, have perme-

ated its image. It adapted their various artistic expressions with absolute 2ase and moulded
them to complement its setting. In the Gothic period, and especizlly in the Baroque, it reached
new, highly unique farms. It advanced the treasury of architectural styles with a style of its
own - Cubism. The authenticity of all the various forms of archileclure that exist here in the



utmost harmony must be that unique force that created the extraordinary energy of this city
- its genius locl.

This blending of the architectural styles ol different periods acquires an exeeptional
charm as it unfolds along the undulating terrain of the Prague basin, embracing the bend of
the river Vitava. A range of furms has zaccumulated here, the horizontal shapes of the buildings
giving way to the whole host of vertical contours of towers, domes and spires. The image of
the city would ba inconceivable without the many gablets of its dormer-windows, without
the oriels, turrets, richly ornamented gables, cornices and sculptures. The heart of Prague,
its OId Town, has, to this day, kept the medieval fabric of its winding stroets almast intact
- with the Old Town Square at their centre, interrelated by a system of passageways and ar-
cades. Prague’s magical spiril, that mysterious revelation of its hidden charms, radiates as
soon as we set foot outside the customary tourist routes. And then there are the historic
quarters of Mald Strana and Hrad&any, their impressive panoramic view rising above the sur-
face of the Vilava, from the foot of the hill crowned with Prague Castle. After the fires that
broke out there in the late Middle Ages, these districts became the dwelling place of the no-
bility. The Renaissance and Baroque palaces were canstructed as a resull of this, with their
balconies and staircases, their many gardens with pavilions and loggias. They have preserved
their picturesque quality owing to the minimal input inio their organism of any architecture
of a later date. Only ihe features of Prague’s most recent historical town - the New Town
- have been markedly ransformed. The New Town was founded in the mid-14™ century by
the emperor Charles IV, in a manner that was generous to such a degree that, untll the mid-
19 century, a significant part of its territory was taken up by spacious gardens and orchards
bordering a large number of monastery courtyards. The span of thesc groen zones, which
coniained the upsurge of building activity in the 197 century, most probably saved the other



historic districts from much graver intrusions. The remarkable rise of construction projects
in the |atter hall of the 19% century transformed Prague, resting on the laurels of its past
greatness, (nto 3 modern city, as did the gradual awakening of the Czech nation within the
Austro-Hungarian Monarchy. Beginning in the 1860s, the Baroque city walls were gradually
pulled down and the city began ils expansion. New communication routes were required, and
symbols of a new era were constructed - the National Theatre, the Rudolfinum, bank and in-
surance company buildings, and shopping arcades. The life of modern man could not be teth-
ered by the limits of the ancient city. It blossomed everywhere by way of new buildings, which
often drastically upset the scale and relations of the historic urban environment. The area of
the former Jewish ghetto, whose structure was an agglomeration of housing units clustered
together at the time when the ghetto was entirely sealed off from the rest of the city, was ihe
most problematic. It became the site of regulated slum clearances, which, however, did not
remain limited to its territory. Within the framework of the arca designated as a low neigh-
bourhood, many valuable houses, churches and synagogues were also demolished.

From the wave of protests that arose, from an intellectual elite that was, at first, still
thriving on the Romanticist ideas af the period, a society was born in 1900 that included the
idea For OId Prague in its name. Some years later, after the Society’s members adopied the
modern theory of heritage protection and gained an understanding of modern architecture,
they became aware of the problematic nature of the Society’s name. The Seciety did not aim to
renounce modem life and new architecture; it merely maintained that their integration within
the histaric environment needed to be harmonious and beautiful. However, the proposal to
name |t the Society For Beauliful Prague wias never accepled.

The great damage inflicted by the construction activities of the 19" and 20" centuries never

14 succeeded in seriously impairing the fundamenta! structure of Prague's historic core, with all its




aforementioned characteristics. Thus, the mazin tasks of the Society For Old Prague today remain
znalogous:

To protect the historic character of the city by advocating the regulation of the volume and
height of all new buildings.

To struggle to protect specific buildings of architectural meriL.

To monitor conversions and recanstructions, 5o that they are undertaken with the greatest
respect and guided by professional experlise.

To be attentive to architectural competitions and building plans for the hitherto vacant sites.
To provoke, and parlicipate in, public debates on these subjects,

To be a partner to the heritage institutions, as well as a mediator in the complex discussions
with the architects and the building contractors,

To identily the mistakes of both these parties, and to reveal possible misprisions on behall
of the state or the municipal aulhorities.

To educale the public through lectures, tours, and individual consultations,

To provide necessary information on the pages af its magazine {nowadays also via Internet)
and to be publicly active through the means of the media.

The Society fulfilled all these activities a hundred years ago, as it still fulfils them at prasent,

now that Prague has been inscribed on the UNESCO Warld Heritage List (since 1992), Being
a civic association, the Sociefy has no legal autharity. All it possesses is ils moral repute, rest-
ing on the activities of the important architects, histarians, art and architecture historians of ils
Resident Board, which is the executive body of the Society For Old Prague. All the members of {he
Sociaty, who work here as volunteers, are deeply aware of their responsibility for the fate of this
exceptional city. RADMILA KREUZZIEGEROVA

5
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Map of the clty's historic core
(Prague’s four districts — Old Town,
New Town, Mals Steana HradEany),
1824

History of the Society For Old Prague

BIRTH OF TME IDEA “FOR OLD PRAGUE" The Inspiratian of the radical reconstructions of the
centres of many greal European cities, such as Haussmann's reconstruction of Paris and similar
urban planning solutions for the medieval centres of Vienna, Budapest and Brussels, reached
Prague belatedly. While the first thoughts concerning a slum clearance in Prague originated in
the 1870s, It was only in 1893 that the law was passed which allowed for the extensive full-scale
demolition and ereation of a modern district in the city centre. The area sacrificed was the most
neglected part of the city's urban core: the old Jewish ghetto in Lhe Josefov district and an adher-
ing sectian of the Old Town, Prague’s oldest district. However, the Prague slum clearance, which
commenced in the mid-1890s and consisted of the demolition of 620 historic buildings, was
not the anly building project that was implicated in the eradicalion of a vast number of houses
of architectural merit and in the erosion of the very complex fabric of the city's medieval sireet
plan. The advantages of building entreprencurship in the period of general econornic boom in the
1880s had already resulted in the gradual introductian of new buildings into the city's highly com-
pact historic layout. In Prague’s historic quarters - Old Town, New Town, Josefoy, Mala Strana
and Hrad€any - close to ane and a half thousand houses were demalished in the course of only
1wo decades at the turn of the 20™ century, which statistically amounts to half of all residential
housing. Of that total, 2 third was demolished in the course of development work listed as slum
clearance and organised by Lthe Prague municipal authorities, while the remaining two-thirds were
demalished Ihrough private construction and entreprencurial activities. The districts on the |eft
bank of the Vltava - Hrad&any with Prague Castle and Mala Strana - were |east afiected. In con-
trast, the greatest changes took place on the right bank, where the residential area of Josefov was
entirely wiped out and the Old and New Tawns were partially destrayed.
It is not at all surprising thal the demalition of old bourgeois houses provoked a wave of
12 disapproval amongst the Czech cultural elite. Alongside the individual style and picturesque
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Demolition of Prague’s ghetto

with the constrection of
Pafitsks atreet

charm of these buildings, often renovated in a number of architectural styles, the houses also
provided material evidence of the city’s architzctural development from its ¢arliest days. \What
quickly became evident was the futility of protest directed against particular cases of demolitian,
for the demolition works began to spread at such a pace that the very essence of Praguz as a
historic ¢ity seemed to be disintegrating. IL was impossible for anyone to predict when and at what
stage of damage would the demalition be halted. The first exceplionally fierce criticism, entitled
To the Czech Nation!, was published in the daily press at Easter, on the 5 of April 1896, With the
20 aemotional pathos typical of ihe perod. its suthor, the Czech writer Vilgém Mrétik, addressed the




nation wath the following words: "Prague s not the property of only a few people, it is the properiy
of us all, aod it is the people alone, championed by each and every individual, who have the right to
decide its destiny™. Mareover, he stirred up the public and issued a call ta arms: “We do not want this
to be only a Platonic protest against the vandalism being perpetrated on our hundred-spired, fovely
Prague. We know how little cffect such a protest would have. We call on the entire nation to speak
up in its mighty voice and declare lts will". The protest, signed by dozens of significant public figures
such as wrilers, painters, architecls, MPs, was prodigiously well received. The press published texts
daily voicing further support. Various protest mestings followed, as well 2s student and platform

Demolition of
Prague's ghetto with
the construction of
Platnéfzis streot
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meetings, articles and reproving pamphlets; the most poignant of which was the article 8estia
triumphans, filled with sharp irony and pitilessly direct eriticism, whase author was again Vilem
Mritik. The public fipures most actively involved in the protests, as well as other advocates ef the
idea For Dld Prague, gradually formed a movement, and, on (he 28" of January 1900, founded an
association bearing the same name.

YHE CHAOTIC SEARCH FOR WORKING METHODS The executive committee of the newly
established association, the so-called resident board, rushed o work immediately and in eamesi.




The conception of the new association's activities did not diverge from the scheme which had
already proved efiicient: that is, to compose a letter of pratest, spread it in all directions and pro-
mote it by all means, and to exert pressure on the city and state authorities with the aid of allied
personages and press. Nevertheless, it soon became obvious that the assaciation’s actions could
not rest simply in the formulation of fervent protests. What was needed was studious, systematic
work, qualified supervisian and many hours spent in discussion during regular weekly meetings.
Many of the first conservation problems in which the Society For O/d Prague intervened
concerned ihe results of new transportation schames. The network of electric tramlines was

Skrtching indicating
the electric wiring at
Charles Bridge, Karel
Kluzdcek, 1900



increasing in densily in the city cenire and it was planned that the network would even lead
across lhe Gothic Charles Bridge, Prague’s greatest attraclion and the most characteristic
feature of all its panoramic portrayals, However, that would have entailed obscuring the world-
renowned view of Prague Castle's panorama with “electric wire netting”. The Socfety did noi suc-
ceed in preventing the installation of the tracks on the bridge, but, by means of an extensive
protest campaign in which many other associations taok part, it prompted an original technical
solution that ensured that the tramcars were charged with an electrical current coming from
the tracks below.

The construction of a rack railway up the steep Nerudova street, leading from Malostran-
ské square directly to Prague Castle, was successfully opposed, while optimal alternatives were
sought for further new tramlines originally designed to cut across the most valuable residantial
areas of the Old Town and Mald Strana. From the distance of a hundred years, the designs and
alternatives that our predecessors in the Society For Ofd Prague proposed strike us now 2s urn-
acceplable, However, aware of the tragic events the admirers of architectural heritage had wit-
nessed in the Prague of those days, we must recognise that out of a number of inferior initiatives
which permanently, insidiously and very realistically threatened this heritage, it was necessary
to choose those that were |east damaging. The abundance of alarming information, warnings and
issues discussed and carefully checked - for it was almost impossible to guess how idle or truly
important they could be - testifies that our predecessors found themselves in a situation which
was not in the least part simple, Anything could happen in the Prague of those days, and it wes
impassitile to argue that any significant historic building - with only Lhe probable exception of
Prague Castle and several large churches - would be spared in the next demolition. This is per-
haps why the activities of the Society For Old Prague were so highly intense, almost overzealous,

24 hut at the same lime very ¢haotic in the first years of its existence.
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The old Kolkovna
building at MHouha
trida, demolished
In 1904

From dozens af houses designated for demalition during the first decade of the 20" cen-
tury, the members of the Sociefy’s resident board chose only the maost significant and Ied an
assiduous struggle for their preservation - often to np avail. Their successes Included, in 1902,
the preservation of the fagade of the Pauline monastery building (no. 9304 in the Old Town), the
only histaric bullding at the north end of the Old Town Square. However, they did not succeed in
rescuing the naarby spacious building, the so-called Kolkovna (House of Stamps), in Dlouhd street
{no. 922-1in the Oid Town), which contained a medieval palace with a large courtyard and a prism-
shaped tower concealed at its care. The gravest problem on the left bank of the Vitavs, at Malz 25



View of the 0ld Town Square before the stum claarance; on the left-hand
side the town hall [its east wing was destroyed durlng the Second Woild
War], centre: Kren's House [demelishad in 1901); on the right-hand

side, on the north side of the sguare, the Paullne monastery bullding,
presecved due o the Sociely’z interventian
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Strana, was the narrow end of Karmelilska street leading onlo the Malostranske square, where an
entire group of valuable, mainly Renaissance houses was torn down in the 1890s in order to widen
the street enough Lo install tramlines. The search for the best design for this ungainly breach and
the healing of this wound in the architecture af Mald Strana lasted for almost two decades. The
Saciety For Old Prague advocated the construction of 2 new building in harmony with the volume
and mass of the demolished urban ensemble, whose parterre would include an underpass for
trarmlines. Unfortunately, this design was nat chosen,

NEW INSPIRATION At the very end of the 20" century's first decade, the Society for
Old Prague went through an important generation change, A number of young architecis and art
historians, the majority of them still students, joined the resident board. They did not just bring
young blood Into the organisation - they departed fram the original working methods of bath the
founding generation and its critics. Their methods in¢luded an active co-operation in resolving
problems; they provided the Seciefy’s own proposals, including archilectural designs, as well as
its own expert opinions. |t was an exceptional, extraordinary fieneration. Many of these young
architects (Antonin Engel, Josef Chochol, Pavel Jandk, Bohumil Hibschmann) later became ex-
tremely successful, and their works are now part of the history of Czech archifeciure. The same
could be said about the role of Zdenék Wirth, V. V. Stech and Antonin Matéjéek in the advance of
Czech art history and art theory.

Far almost two decades after 1905, the resident board of the Society For Old Prague was
involved in development projects on the Vitava's embankment in the New Town district, where
a daminantly positioned group of buildings of Na Slovanech or [he so-called Emmaus menastery
stoad an an elevated terrain. The historic outline, strongly present In the paneramic views of the

28 river's right bank, had lasted since the founding of the New Town in the mid-15 century. Now, in




the first decade of the 20™ century, it was 1o be distorted by the construction of tall apartment

blocks an a newly regulated embankment, obstruciing the view aof the monastery and its spacious

church building. The architect Bohumil Hibschmann, one of the young members of the resident

board of the Society For Oid Prague, became deeply involved in this project. As of 1905, he devel-
oped several alternative designs for the new embankment complex, more heedful of the historic

urban situation than those devised by the city's construction affice. Fortunately, he debate can-
cerning the planned layout for the development below the Emmaus monastery hindered the hasty
canstruction of the problematic design, and other architects gradually presented their proposals.
However, the First World War interrupted ihe selzction of the most suitable design. After the War,
the new Czechaslovak state reopened the question of a new development below the Emmaus

monastery as a possible location for its new state institutions. Moreover, the centrally designed

new square was deemed to be an excellent location for a monument dedicated to the soldiers of
Prague origin who fell an the battleficds in the war. In the early 1920s, Bohumil H{bschmann was

the architect selected to complete his pre-War designs for the complex below the Emmaus mon-
astery, and it was his project that was finally executed in 1924-1929. It is composed as 3 set of
buildings separated from the embankment by a park area. In 1932, a monument entitled Prague to

its Victerious Sons was placed in the central space between the buildings. Bohumil Hobschmann,
designer of the overall urban plan and architecture of the square, shaped he architecture of
this elaborately figurative work created by the sculptar Josef Mafatka. (In the Second World War,
the Nazis intentionally destroyed the monument. It was restored only in |998, according to 8

preserved model). Needless to say, Hibschmann's overall compaosition of this urban complex
demonstrates great respect towards the historic view of the Emmaus monastery buildings. The
execution of this design, initiated by the Seciety For Ofd Prague, is what we today consider the
greatest success of the Society’s hundred-year-old history.

29



Embankment with the remains of
onginal housing, from the period
of tho carllest disputes regarding
the pratection of the Emmaus
monastery view, before 1907

Architect B, HGbschmann's project
for Palnckého square and the
buildings of the mimistries beneath

the Emmaus complex



Centzmparary vlew of the Emmaus complex
(the church fagade was obliterated by a
Bom® at Lthe end of the Second Woild Warj ite
two towers were replacad in the 1260s)

The architects from Lhe resident board of the Society For Old Prague proposed a number of
original designs in an efiort to save the socalled Braun's House (ne. 730-11in the New Town) from
being demalished. This building, dating from 1726 and owned by Matthias Bernard Braun, the
most praminent sculptor of Czech Baroque, was an exceptionally valuable architectural jewal,
highly unique within the usual morphology of the Baroque. However, its new owner was deter-
mined to use the plot to construct a taller and more lucrative building. The alternative designs by
the architects Pavel Janak and Viastislay Hofman proposed additional storeys, erecled on col-
umns over the mass of the original house, which would reach up io the level of the adjacent new ¢



P. Jandl's design for the prezervation

of Brauns House, 1910

V. Helman's doslgn for the preservation
of Braun’s House, 1910

buildings. Their projects would thus have provided the owner with the desirad volume of the build-
ing while still preserving the most valuable quality of the original house - its facade. Although today
we can hordly avoid Teeling serious doubt with regard to these solutions, we must acknowledge
Lheir effort to preserve at least a section of this valuzable building. We must zlso understand that
the blending of historic architecture with new forms corresponded with the theory of the Austrian
scholar and art historian Alois Riegel, whase ideas were unconditionally adopted by the Society For
Old Frague in that period, This theory sirangly objected to historicizing appendages and to complet-
32 ing 3 building in quasi-histaric forms. It argued that the grealest valuz af a monument of architec-

=



l Beaun’s House,

demolished in 1910

ture rested with the authenlic matenal quality of all the different phases of its development, which
it valued as instoncally and aesthetically egual. Unfortunately, the owner of the Braun's House
rejected the design proposed by the Seciery and the house was demolished in 1910.

Another building threatened by demalition was a highly unique Renaissance edifice known
as U Vejvodi (no. 353+ in the Old Town). Karel Klusdcek, a member of the Society For O/d Prague.
gained recagnition for the preservation of this building after buying it and offering part of it for
rent to a number of associations. In 1909, the Sociefy began using several rooms in this house,
and this period, until the beginning of the First World War, can be considered as a time of great



flourishing In the Society's zctivities. Its membership base reached 900 members and its oifice
staff included from one to three waged ofiice clerks, who managed the extensive correspand-
ence that amounted 10 twelve hundred letters sent annually - with the number of received letters
being even higher. The members had at their daily disposal a library offenng 400 literary titles
and 87 (!) differant periodicals. It had an equipped photo-chamber, and its photographic archive
was systematically developed. Amaong others, its accessions included entries fram a number of
photographic competitions organised by the Society. It is worthy of note that, between 1911 and
1913, Bohumil Kubista and Jan Zrzavy - two yaung men who were to become great Czech painters
- earned their wages there as paid office clerks.

In order to manage the Socieiy's public relations, communicate its opinions and present
its own ideas for resolving problematic building developments, it was absolutely essential that
the Society should establish its ewn journal. The first five volumes of the for Old Prague bulletin,
published from 1910 until the outbreak of the First World War, were packed with topical news, in-
formation and theoretical essays, and lllustrated with a large number of photographs, small plans
and sketches. The bulletin's main contribution was that it presented the principles and practice
of heritage preservation and the conservation of artworks of all categories. In this manner, it
became a significant substitute for state conservation institutions. (The bullelin v/as published,
with varying periodicity and pauses throughout bath Warld Wars, until 1954. During the next
forly-five years, only a miscellany of contributing articles was published, either hali-yearly, yearly
or every couple of years. On the occasion of its 100™ anniversary in 2000, the Socrety For Ofd
Prague returned to the bulletin’s original concept of 1210, stating ils respect and admiration for
its predecessors.)

In 1910, another laborious and remarkable work was coming into existence under the or-

24 ganisation of the Society For Old Prague - a paper model of Mald Strana and Hrad€any, the his-




U Vejvadd House, farmer
seal of Uie Saciely For Oid

taric paris of Prague situated on the Vitava's left bank. The impetus for the creation of this model
cams {rom heated discussions aboul the impzact of proposed interventions on the panoramic view
of Mala Strana and |lrad&any, which gradually rose from the Vitava towards the great tower of the
St Vitus' Cathedral. The subtle harmony of the urban terrain, slowly formed over centuries, was
easily disturbed, The model was thus meant 1o serve as a practical utility for testing the effects of
new building developments upon the urban design of the two districts. The work on ifs creation
continued gradually until 1941, under the supervision of the architect Bohumil Hibschmann, The
preject succeeded in winning state subventions for a number of years, thus providing for a team 35
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which included an architect, who made detailed drawings of the buildings; a bookbinder, who
glued them together to make a three-dimensional model; a sculptor, who cast the tsrrain in plas-
ter; and a joiner, who made the supparting woaden construction, {Between 1939 and 2001, the
model was publicly exhibiled on nine different occasions, either during events organised by the
Society or as a loan at exhibitions organised by athers. It was also twice exhibited abroad.)

UNDER THE WEIGHT OF IS OWN FAME Following the fall of the Austre-Hungarian Empire,
36  the Czechoslovak Republic was created in 1918. For the Society For Old Prague, this year marked




tion of architects and art historians irom within the assaciation had, in the meantime, reached
a mature age, Whilst having become highly prominent in the social, artistic and institutional
life af the new state, they all remained faithiul to the Saciety For Old Prague, Although slill nat
founded lagally, this meant practically that the heritage proiection ideas - born and developed in
the preceding period of erucial struggle with the engineering and entreprencurial approaches to
fistaric architecture - grew to be the predominant and, more or less, respecled opinians held by
the official authorities. It was this very fact that in the mid-1920s resulted in the founding of an

iwo decades of challenging work end a great number of valuable experiences, Tho young genera-

Model of Mali Stsana
and Hradcany
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opposition movernent issuing from the positions of radical Modernism, which aperated under the
indicative name of For New Prague. It criticised the Society For Ofd Prague for exerting such an
influence on the relevant municipal institutions during the twenty-five years of its existence that it
had become absolutely impossible to canstruct @ building in a new style in the city centre; that is,
a tall building with a flat roof. While, according to them, the centre was laden with insignificant cld
hauses, the beautiful modern architecture was being pushed oul Lo the periphery... Unfortunately,
the Modermnists were not completely right. The influence of the Sociefy's ideeas was indeed great in
this period, but iL did not have an absolute predominance - as was proven in NUMErous cases.

As Prague Castle was yet again being transformed inlo the seat of the head of state, it un-
derwent numerous adaptations that lacked any particular unifying concepl. The Society For Qid
Prague crilicised these chaotic proceadings, and its advice was that the work should be entrusted
10 a single creative individual. The Sociery supported the idea 1o appoint the Stavene architect
Josip Plegnik as the Castle architect. The suggestion was accepted, and the pesiod of Pleénik’s
engagemenl at Prague Castle represents a notable phase of the modern architectural history of
this thousand-year-old seal of the head of the Czech stale. ILmarked a period in which the historic
architeslure blended superbly with its madern finish, reaching a symbiotic union and revealing @
compelling harmany of the eld and the new.

In the first decade of the 20™ century, the Society For Old Prague began to carefully moni-
tor the development plans for the left bank of the Vitava, which encompassed a highly important
vista: the foreground of the celebrated panoramic view of Lthe Malé Strana, dominated by Prague
Castle. The riverside neighbourhood of Mal Strana is formed by an island called Kampa, which is
separaled from the mainfand by an arm of the Vitava known as Certovka. Kampa has always been
chiefly an arca of gardens and mills, which is why this green belt bordering the river has & charac-

38 teristic panoramic quality and, in the view of the Society For Old Prague, is worthy of the highast




protection, The Society averted a dangerous proposal to cover up Certovka, and various develop-
ment proposals — first of all for a block of apartment buildings, then far a line of office buildings,
and finally for a housing estate. Nonetheless, in 1922 the new state became fascinaled by theidea
of construcling 8 madern art gallery at Kampa. It pramoted an architectural competition in which
tha dasign by the famous Czech architect Josef Gocar iriumphed and, as early as 1927, the founda-
tion stone for the gallery building was put in place. Althaugh apprecialing the worth of the newly
designed building, which was low and richly partitioned, the Society found it difficult to accept its
herizontal scope reaching across the entire island. The contaur line of the new Kampa gallery was
graphically demarcated in 1930, lllustraiing how canspicunusly it would feature in the panoramic
views of hald Strana and HradZany. Fortunately, this building was never completed - not so much
because of the problematic demarcation but largely owing to the fact that the state, affected by an
economic crisis, was reluctant to invest a large amount of its finances into a cultural enterprise.

These experlences in averting numerous threats to Mald Strana, (he best preserved and
least affected by demalitions of all Prague's districls, inspired the members ol the Society For
Old Prague to propose its nomination as a conservation area. Parallel to this, they were active
in preparing a general policy for the regulation of historic quarters, ensuring thai the principles
of their historic urban planning would be respected - as would be their archilectural and conser-
vational merit. These proposals and altempts to formulate proper conservation legisiation were
applied only after the Second World War, when the official heritage instilulions adopted the Soci-
ety’s pioneering and founding activities in the freld of conservation [heory and legislation.

During the 1920s and 1930s, Prague was troubled by typical metropolitan prablems. The
most pressing was the need to improve transportation links hetween the city centre and the
autskirts, especially the northwest seclion separaled from the cenlre by the Petiin hill, the in-
cling with Prague Caslle, and the slope known as Letnd. Although historic routes already exisied 39
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Panotamic view of Mala
Strana and Prague Costle,
< 1875

between these elevated sections of Prague, Lheir capacity was insufficient for the demands of
modern trafiic. As a consequencs, the so-called "Petfin theroughfare™ project was developed: a
design for a road leading across the peaceful zone of greenery on top of Petfin hill which waould
substantially degrade the area. The city authorities discussed this issue for years and searched for
optimal solutinns for the thoroughfare route - whether it should be designed in serpentines arina
straight line, whather it should include all types of transport, together with trams, or be used only
for cars, elc. On 1= of April 1937, the Society For Gid Prague initiated a public protest meefing of
the association, and prepared a resolution which was signed by 50 legal subjects. This compelled
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the municipal council to promote a public compelition for a new project {o improve Prague’s cam-
munication links with its northwest sectar. As a solution, the winning design proposed twa tunnels
- one below Petfin hill and the ather below Letna. The architect Alois Kubitek, who in 1938 was
the president of the Society For Oid Prague, was part of the victorious team, (Both tunnels were
later built and their value for present-day Prague is immeasurable.}

The minute but architecturally highly significant building of a garden pavilion on the leit
bank aof the Vitava river, in the district of Smichov, became one of the many victims of grow-
ing demands for quicker and safer traffic routes. This bulilding, dating {from 1735 and designed
in the style of High Baroque, was the wark of the famous Czech Baroque aschitect Kilian Ignic
Dientzenhofer. The Socieiy first intervened to protect the building in 1903; on that occasion the
issue al stake was only the positioning of an embankment wall in the pavilion’s proximity, and
the Society's demand for an appropriate revitalisatian of the pavilion's surroundings. In 1928, the
building came under threat of demolition because of a planned new bridge across the river, The
city representatives guarantead to move the pavilion Lo a small park that was further south fram
its original location. The relevant city and conservation authorities discussed for over half a year
the possibilities of transferring the pavilion withaut damaging it, as well as the particular technol-
ogy for this transfer. After that, evidently on account of technical difficulties and the cast, the
municipal council decided to demolish the pavilion, The Sociely For Ofd Prague postponed the
execulion of this decision by organising a protest meeting. It also made an effort to obtain the fi-
nancial means to undertake the costly transfer. Unfortunately, the construction of the new bridge
had in the meantime advanced 1o such a degree that it was impossible 1o wait any longer, and the
cily's decision regarding the pavilion’s demolilion was endorsed and executed.

During the 1920s the aciivity of the Society For Ofd Prague flourished outside Prague, in an
42 unexpected but extremely gratifying manner. The Saciety's popularity was so great that, as early
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as from 1910 omwards, interested parties in many Czech historic towns began establishing local
branches. The volunteers in the towns of Ceské Budéjovice, Domailice, Kutna Hora and Pelhfimov
were the most commitled, their branches being the most active. These local branches frequently

featured In the association’s magazine and Prague members regularly travelled to meet their cal-

leagues in other towns, bringing with them advice and practical aid.

In 1927, the Sociely For Old Pragus began renting an unusual building as its seat - a former
Remanesque bridge tower, originally part of the now demolished Judith Bridge acrass Vitava. It is
lccated on the left bank of the river, on Mala Strana, at the foot of the Charles Bridge, adjacent to

.
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View of Charlez Bridge
featuring the bridge towers

at Mala Strana; the one on
the left, Romanezque and
compieted in the Rengissance
style, has been the seat of the
Society For Oid Prague since
1927




From the exhibition of the 50™
anniversary of the Socicty For
O Pragwe in the Museum

of Decorative Arts, featuring
photographs of the chicl
Communist loaders, an inevitable
appendsge of the period, 1950

a Gothic bridge tower of later date, and the Society For Old Prague has kept its premises on the
three storeys inside this tawer to this day.

THE SAFE HAVEN OF PASSIVITY During the Secand World War, the activity of the Society For
Oid Frague was suppressed for abvious reasons, but its usual working methods were re-established
immediately after the end of the War. However, they were not to Iast for long. In February 1948, after
a coup d'état, the so-called socialist society controlled by the Cammunist Party began to flourish in
Czzchoslovakia. The Society For Old Prague had an advantage in this new situation, as its mission was
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not obviously palitical, and the care of histeric monuments became one of the proclaimed aims of
the state’s cultural policy. It was probably this very rezson that successfully protecied the Scoiaty’s
autonomy and independence in the early 1950s, when a new law regarding {he status of associations
was passed {just as the Sociely For 0/d Prague was celebrating the first Rty years of its exisience).
In an era which was extramely unfavourable ta independent associations, in which practiczlly all the
pre-War associalions were either abolished or became dysfunctional, it was almost a miracle that the
Society For Old Prague survived vithout any breach of its legal status; however, there was a tendency
to make it subordinate, 2s a group of voluniesring collaborators, to a state conservation institution.
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During the 1950s and 1960s many of the representatives of official Prague heritage institu-
tions were also members of the resident board of the Sociaty For Old Prague, which is why direct
protests or independent public engagement proved unnecessary. The association's premises
were used as a place for social gatherings of individuals with the same professional orientation
and similar interests. The contents of the miscellany that the association published included
articles loyally reporting the various cvents in the field of heritage protectian, importlant archzeo-
logical findings and the results of architectural history research. Nevertheless, the Society did
rot publish any critiques or nan-conforming commentaries. This was altered only during the late




1960s, when a brief moment of chance brought a relaxing of the political atmosphere. Dur-
ing this period, the Sociely’s resident board openly criticised the construction of the so-called
“Mald Strana tunnel”, designed to direct heavy Lraffic underneath the territory of Mala Strana and
Kampa Island, which would have resulted in a number of Irreversible urban intrusions. The Soci-
efy's protest against the intended construction of an underground railway was another important
public contribution, The Society published a memarandum entitied Beiware!, which expressed its
fears of the vital losses in the urban structure that would be caused by the construction of this
railway, whose shallow routes were devised to lead not only underneath the streets but also below
the houses in the historic centre. |f these houses did not fall victim to the construction works, Lthey
would almost certainly be damaged or destroyed by the traffic. Fortunately for these buildings of
architectural merit, in 1967 — after a period of dramatic hesitation - the state instiutions voted
for an underground metro system recommended by the Soviet experts. However, its construction
- especially its stations - still entailed the demolition of valuable historic urban ensembles.

After the mid-1970s, the association's public activities focused on the preservation of the
former Té3nov railway station building - a gracelul neo-Renaissance edifice daling from 1878,
ideal as a potential cultural location. Unfortunately, however, the building was partly in the way of
a future elevated highway, whose design was the pride of the ity representaiives and their politi-
cal leadership at that time. The building was brutally done away with in Idarch 1985. Two other
neo-Renaissance buildings were meant to share its destiny: a school building in the Zizkov district,
lefl as the last small island of an old urban struclure in the midst of new apartment blacks, and
a market bullding in the district of Vinohrady, which was to be replaced with a new edifice. The
efforts of the Society For Old Prague were crowned wilh success in both cases, and the two build-
ings have survived to this day.

48 KATERINA BECKOVA
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Demarcation of the depopulation of Mald
Stranm
blue: private residential buildings
red: buildingz owned by the State,

the City or various companies
yollow; Church-gwned buildings

Our contemporary concerns

The fall of the Communist regime in 1989 marked a turning point in the life of our entire
country. Not surprsingly, in the y2ars of turbulent changes that followed, the face of Prague also
became transtormed, as a long period of slow devastation and deterioration of the city's historic
core was replaced by a sudden construction ‘boom', The impetuosity and haste of this process can
only be compared to the late 19* cantury - the period when the Society For Oid Prague was founded.
Indeed, one could say that history is repeating itself here. The majority of houses in Prague's his-
taric core are jeopardised by reconstructions thal threaten to wipe out their histaric characier
altogether, while others had to give way to new, taller buildings. In such circumsiances, heritage
conservation often literally means a struggle for the very suhstance of a historic building. Thisis why
we have witnessed an unparalicled revival of the Society's aclivities in the last ten years. Due to its
political and ecanomic independence, the Society’s role seems ance more o be as vital as it was
during the first daring years following its foundation.

To attempt 10 evaluale a period which still belongs more to the present than to the past is
undoubledly very diificult. In time, we will be able to perceive everything from an zppropriate
distance with, hopefully, mare impartiality. Nevertheless, to prevent the recurrence of certain
grave mistakes engendered by the turbulent times, wa must endeavour today to define the main
phenomena of the period that has just past. Marcaover, this is essential in the current situation
where, even after more than ten years, steps that shauld have been undertaken at the very begin-
ning af {his period are still awaiting campletion. Here, in particular, we have in mind the institu-
tion of basic requirements, such as the definition of the rules for new developments and for the
reconstruction of existing buildings of architectural meritin the historic centre of Prague. What we
can say with certainly at the autset of this evaluation is that the gravest problem for Prague in the
19905 was the absence of appropriate rules that would regulate the buill-up area of the historic

50 centre of this city, which, in 1992, was inscribad on the UNESCO World Heritage List.
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CHANGES IN THE GITY'S HISTORIC CENTRE In many respects, 1990 found the city's core in

a state thal was peculiar and, in comparison to other European metropolises, somewhat unnatu-
ral. The long years without maintenance had left their mark on most buildings, and the sympto-
matic shabhiness of the ancient houses had lent the city a strange, almoslL mystical aimosphera.
To an outsider it could have appeared thal, inside the city, time had come (o a standstill. Tenants

from all sections of society occupied the various houses, and the most beauliful and currently
exclusively tourist areas of Mala Strana and HradZany formed a village of 8 kind in the very heart
of the city. There were no banks operating on the main streets, no expensive restaurants or shops

wilh exclusive goods. On the other hand, there were ordinary bakeries, chemists’ dispensaries,
pubs and bookshops around which revolved the everyday lives of ordinary citizens.

Al this changed almost overnight as Prague became the most frequently visited Eurapean
city of the early 1990s. The buildings were returned to Lheir original owners and the real esiate
prices rose sleeply, generating an enormous pressure to realise a lucrative exploitation of each
and every square metre of propsrty. In the course of this short period the atmosphere in the city
was almost completely transformed, initiating the processes which will take a long time for the
city to overcome; such as the depepulation of the city centre, the massive canversion of apart-
ments within historic buildings into more lucrative office spaces, and a rushed construction of
new office buildings In vacant sites - mast of which had been reserved for buildings of special
importance ta the city.

THE DEMOULITION AND CARELESS RECONSTRUCTION OF THE BUILY HERITAGE One of the
major fiascos of these turbulent limes was the loss of the neo-Baroque Spacek House in Petrska
district, which was replaced by a new bullding despite being one of the oldest edifices in the
52 general vicinity. In its place, in very close groximity to the Ramanesque church of St Peter, a new
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office bullding of very tasteless design was erected, attempting, unsuccessiully, te hide its actual
height behind a massive cornice which was apparently supposed to help it merge with the subtle
scale of the surrcunding houses. At the time the entire cultural elite prolested in vain against the
demaolition, the most ouispoken of whom was the director of the National Heritage Instituie who.
as a consequence of this, was presently removed from her affice.

The “reconstruction” of the Darex building an Wenceslas Square prevoked a similar wave of
disapproval. In this case only the facade was retained from the historic siructure, behind which an
entirely new building was erected. Such a methad, being of course entirely inconsistent with the



Parental home of Jaraslay Halek,
author &f Tho Goad Sofdicr Sveji
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kasic principles of conservation, was later applied in the city centre on numerous other occasions,
and the danger represented by it continues to be a burning issue,

Furthermore, several Neo-Classicist buildings from the first half of the 19™ century wers
kriocked down to provide space for new buildings. Even substantially older houses did nol'escape
tdemolition - ane can mention here the eradication of three houses in Vadikova stree! in the New
Tewn, which were the fast Lo illustrate the historic width of the street and whose Gothic cores be-
lenged to the time of the founding of the district by Charles IV in the mid- 14t century. A similar iate

recenily threatenad the Neo-Classicist building in Skelska street, whose importance, moreover, is 55



increased by the fact thal it was here that the writer Jaroslav Hasek, author of the famous novel
The Good Soldier Svejk and His Fortunes in the World War, was born in 1883. The buifding was finally
resoued through the joint efforts of the state heritage office and the independent professional or-
ganisations (alangside the Sociely For Old Prague, these organisations included the Czech Sociely
of Arl History and the Institute for Art History at the Academy of Sciences of the Czech Republic).

The number of negligently reconstructed houses is of course much greater. Let us, how-
ever, note here one shameful example - the turning of the church of St Michael into a kitschy
St Michael Mystery Show. This house of worship, which was already a parish church in the 13%
century and ong of the Old Town's most important temples, was last reconstructed in the Gothic
style in the mid-14* century, while its final adaptations date from the |ate Baroque periad al
the [atter half of the 18™ centuyry. [ts blighted fate began with the deconsecration of the church
in the period of the reforms of Masia Theresa and Joseph [l of Austria in the late-18* century,
alter which the temple’s interior was divided into separate foors and used 2s sterage space for
the next 200 years or so. Nevertheless, its Barogue interior, including delails of the profiles of
Its calumns and mouldings, remained remarkably well preserved despite the aforementioned
reconstructions, and, after 1990, it seemed that the church would be restared to its rightful con-
dition at lasL. Inslead of the requisite restoration, however, ihe temple was further degraded, and
even the impressive protests of the Czech cultural elite could nat halt this process. At present
this former church is a nightclub with a prospering restaurant in its laft, and there is no indica-
tion that this disgraceful state of afiairs will change.

The so-called loit adaplations — In fact, new apartments constructed inside the historic
area of Prague's roofs - are another major problem for the historic centre. Their main drawback
is the creeping but ultimately massive change [hey will wreak upon the highly valusble outline

56 of the ancient Prague rools, as almost each adaptation requires the canstruction of new dormer-
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vindows or non-original skylights. Moreover, the adaptations have in most cases damaged the
histeric roofs, often 300 years old or more, with Gothic roofs dating from the 142 century being

na exception.

Of the monuments of modern architecture, the interior of the unigue Functionalist Julis Ho-
tel by the architect Pavel Janak, dating from 1932, was utterly destroyed through reconstruction.
This case was a crude violation of the conservation law, since the new owner demolished paris
of the building without consulting the conservation autharities. The hotel's unique coffeehouse,

which extended over two floors of the building and was the

heart of Prague’s social and cultural

7



View of the Old Town
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life in the 1930s, was entirely ruined as a result of this. We cannot really expect that its replica

= which the new owner apparently aims to create - will be an appropriate replacement for the
original coffeenouse interior,

NEW BUILDINGS IN THE HISTQRIC CENTRE New buildings in the city centre, erected on

sites that had been vacant for years, are a problem in their own right. Unfortunately, we must
say that, in the majority, these buildings typify the effort to gain maximum profit from z given
picce of real estate. Such an atfitude leads to the situation where a new building fills its entire
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Objectionable roof adaptation, Baroque House at Kampa [n the vicinity of Charles Bridge; its roof
1960 also faces the thrant of o possible sdaptstion

allotment and, moreover, considerably overtops its surroundings. Furthermare, new buildings do
nol respect the historic urban allocation. and ungainly colossi rise in the place of several housss
damaging the sublle scale of their historic surroundings. This was the unscrupulous manaer in
which the Myslbek affice and shopping cenire entered a line of older buildings, filling the lots
of whal used to be five individual buildings - including their adjacenl gardens, which had been
removed after a bank was planned for this location during the 1920s. The inlegration within the
fstone surroundings was not made any more successful by the imitation of o mansard roof or
the simulated division of the fagade into sevaral separate units - the mass of this colossus, rising

39



substantially above its surroundings, unfortunately dominates a very wide area both in close-up
and long-distance views.

The planned new building of the Astra Palace, at the bottom corner of Wenceslas Square,
grew to represent an analogous problem. The city had sold a small bul extremely exposed lot to
a private investar, who introduced the idea of a high-rise tower block that would become the most
Imposing building in the city centre. The urban layoul of Wenceslas Square and its vicinity dates
from the period of the founding of the New Town in 1248, while the Old Town, on whose edge the
Intended building is to be located, has an urban structure dating from as early as the 12™ and 13"
centuries. AL the end of the 19™ century, the neo-Renaissance building of the National Museum
effortlessly grew to dominate the architecture of Wenceslas Square, with all of the other buildings
slowly graduating towards Its mass.

The suggested tower in the lower parl of the Sguare would impair this natural gradation
and become an unaccepiably placed projection in its urban layoul. After long discussions, an
agreement was reached to reduce the height of the tower to the level of the small comer tower of
the Koruna Palace, situated on the opposite side of the Square. Nevertheless, desgite their corre-
sponding heights the two buildings differ substantially - what in the case of the Koruna Palace is
only a seulpturally trezted accent at the corner of the building corresponds, in the case of the new
bullding opposite, to two standard office floors. We can only commiserate that the city of Prague,
rather than sell the lot, did not endeavour instead to build, far example, a city information centre
here, whose form would not be defined by the pressure for the maximum exploitation of each and
overy square metre of the building but by the architectural qualities of the prospective design.

The consttuction of the spacious administrative Longin Business Centre in the closest
proximity 1o the Romanesque rotunda of St Longinus, dating from the 12 century, is another

60 unfortunate example of a new architecture built inside a historic context. A single block took the
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plzce of @ lang defunct cemetery and some demolished Neo-Classicist buildings, and the minute
church next to il now seems more like 2 piece of city paraphernalia than a building in its own
nght. As a consequence of this, all the new building’s potential qualities have been eradicated by
the mapprapriste scale it has infroduced into its historic surroundings.

The sa-called Dancing House on the Vitava's embankment, designed by the architecis
Frank Gehry and Vlado Milunit, is one of the very few successiul examples of a new building
iocated within the city centre, whose highly modern architesture was composed into a row
of architecturally imposing historicist buildings along the embankment. In the example of the

.
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Dancing House, we can clearly see the crucial influence of the investor on the future appear-
ance of the building. The Dutch company Natianale Nederlanden wiscly allowed the architects’
crealive (light to unfold without the pressure of the constantly voiced demands for @ maximum
explaitation of each and every square metre of the expensive lot. Owing to this accent on the
architectural quality, the Dancing House - which al the time of its creation divided Prague Into
two very opposed factions of supporters and adversaries - is today one of the city's popular
tourist atiraclions.
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MAIN CAUSES OF THE UNHFORYUNATE SITUATION AND THE ROLE OF THE SOCIETY FOR OLD PRAGUE
IN THE AFOREMENTIONED [SSUES There are several main causes for the aforementioned
situation. What lies at the very core of the problem is the facl that, at the beginning of the 19903,
neither the city nar the conservation bodies wore prepared for such arapid growth of building
zctivity, No rules were set down lo define the conditions under which new developments would
te aliowed in the cily centre - simply because at the time of Communism it was either the case of
nathing being built in the city or, considering the unlimited power of the ruling party, there being
ro need lo set any rules at all. A short decreo prociaimed by the municipal autherities in 1985 &3
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completed in 1996
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thus remained the only regulatory article that, in terms of conservation, set certzin [imits to the
reconstruction and new developments in the city's urban core. In the early1990s, it had already
become obvious that this decres had to be made more accurate and grounded upon an urban
regulation plan that would provide a backing both for the city and for the building contractors.
Nonetheless, what finally happened was that the municipal authorities abolished the decree In
1997 without providing any replacement. We can only speculale what lay behind such a decision.
Navertheless, it remains clear that the absence of binding rules opens a wide loophole for all man-
&4 ner of speculation and corruptian.



An inadequate heritage law, created under Communism and highly inappropriale afier the
changes that took place in 1989, creates an additional problern, All attempts to make substantial
amzndments fell through in the face of insufficient interest demonstrated by the country's politi-
cizns to responsibly resolve these delicate and complex prablems for the protection of the country's
cuitral heritage. The situation is further ohscured by the fact that very often the current law is not
complied with. Thus, any effectiveness that it could still provide is reduced to an absolute minimuym.

The last grave problem is the intricate system of heritage protection, with two parallel con-
servation bodies active in Prague - one managed by the state and the other by the city. However, 45
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the city office, which is frequently influenced by local or political interests, has the final say in the
matter. In effect, the two institutions repeatedly issuc contradictory views, tumning an already rather
complex situation into an insoluble labyrinth for the ordinary citizan. Needless 1o say, the incensis:-
encies of the two institulions create a corruptive enviranment and undermine the authorty of the
conservation bodies in the eyes of the architects, the building cantractars, and the ganeral public.

The chaos that emerged in the 1990s once again confirmed the indispensable rele of the
Sacicty For Old Prague as an independent specialist authority making every effort to prevent
the worsl breaches in the historic appearance of the city. The Seciety was highly active in all the
aforementioned situations, as well as in many others. Being an independent civic association, the
Sociely has limited possibilities and the power of its vaice is solely morzal and carries no legal
weight whatsoever, Nevertheless, i has in many cases already succeaded in prevanting the worst
irom happening - be it by stiring up timaly media allention, by appealing to higher authoritics, ar
by nominating the threatened building to become part of the national heritage. Furthermore, the
members of the Socicty are aciive in the various advisory boards and committees (such as the
academic board af the Czech Ministry of Culture, the advisory board of the Prague Lard Mayor's
office, the academic bioard of the National Heritage Institute, and others) where, in direct discus-
stons about the various prajects, they offer opinions which allow @ monument to be preserved ar
a new building to be s=nsitively composead within a historic environment.

PRAGUE'S SUBURBS - THE CITY'S FUTURE Prague is usually perceived as a mono-centric
city dominated by the silhoustte of Hradcany. At the beginning of the 1990s, this perception
led all the business activities of the flourishing sacicty lo facus on Lhe relatively small territory
of Prague's historic core. Nevertheless, this central core is surrounded with a zone af historic
suburbs whose numerous vacant lots unambiguously invite the canstruction of fullvalus urban




spaces, After the capacities of the city centre were exhausted in the mid-1990s, as it was being
lizerally chocksd up with administrative and trading areas, the attention of the investors finally
turned to the former suburbs.

It viould be logical lo expect that the city would have used those five ar so years of minimal
interast in its suburbs to prepare their regulation plans. Instead of 2 carefully planned develop-
ment taking into account the needs and the future of the entire city, however, what usually
happened in the reconstruction of these suburbs mainly repeatad Lhe siluation we know so well
from the historic centre - a strong investor would single out a territary and submit a completed &7
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vision of the future formation of that particular location, from which he would be very reluctant to
compromise by so much as an inch. The relevant tawn hall would then amtempt in vain to define car-
tain rules in retrospect, Besides regulating the height and volume of the new buildings, these rules
should ideally serve to define the proportion af administration, {rading, and residential uniis that are
vital for the normal functioning af the city. It all usually ends with @ compromise, which does invalve
a certain [imitation as to the building’s height and volume, yet cannot interfere with the building’s
function. As a resull of this, further buildings that are exclusively office and shopping centres are
buill, where all life ends after the closing hours of the shops situaied within their premises.
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This is very much the manner in which the heart of Smichov has been reconstructed dur-
Ing the last three years, whers — apart from tha attractive Angel building designed by the French
architecl Jean Nouvell - ostentatious office buildings, mulfi-cinemas and supermarkets have
risen. The price that was paid for these new buildings was a reckless clearance of vast factary
zreas daling from the late 19 and early 20™ centuries, whose large assembly shops and hangars
could have been incorporated into the new buildings without mueh difficulty, enhancing them
with additional value and style. Instead, as if mocking Lhe conservation autharities, only a single
Secessionist front facade of one of the factories has been left, hecaming only a piteaus backdrap
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for the truly trivial new building that rose abave it. The reconstruction of the centre of Smichoy
realised thus far can, on the whole, be evaluated as a wasied opportunity Lo bring new life {0 this
old industrial district close to the historic urban core, 2 gloamy locale of factories that is being
transformed into an area of business and administration. Furthermore, the reconstruction plans
did not include any apartment blocks whatsoaver, thus excluding fram the area all the pertinent
elements that inevitably participate in the organic life of a city - parks, children's playgrounds or
EVEN a square as an elementary component of a city's organism,

The results of the reconstruction of the Neo-Classicist suburb of Kariin are far superior, with
the individual factary buildings slowly being adapted to sarve new purposes ranging from busi-
fess administration to housing and culture. The gradual recanstruction provides the continuity so
crucial for any area, and the creative approach often results in exceptionally attractive buildings,

The campletion of Pankrac, which has troubled the architects of every generation for the last
half-century, is a problem in its own right. This height-oriented district, placed on the southern bor-
der of the historic urban core, was in the 1960s designated as a kind of L2 Défense of Prague. This
restlted in the construction of a number of very tall bulldings, which, owing to their exposed posi-
tion, make their presence felt in the wider context of the panoramic view of historic Prague. The
architects Richard Meier and [ohn Eisler, who only Izst year designed a project for the completion
of the Pankrac plane, envisaged it as a conclusion of the 1960s idea, planning the construction of
further skyscrapers - some of which would rise one third above the leve| of the existing buildings.

This daring project has divided the professional public into two factions, Its supporters find
it the most appropriate, and, indeed, the only possible solution far the problem of completing
the development of Pankric, In their opinion, the existing freestanding or horizontally extended
housing units have already established the necessity to complete (he original idea. The critics,
en the other hand, point aut thal the construciion of skyscrapers on such an exposed site in the 71




historic centre of the city was a mistake irom the very beginming, which cannot be set right by
erecting additional sky-scraping buildings. Quite the reverse, this can only further complicate the
prablem. The Society For Ofd Prague endorses the latter opinion - sky-scraping buildings do not
belong in close proximity to the historic urban tissve, with the panoramic view of Prague Castle
and Hradcany as its only dominant feature. The arguments portraying skyscrapers as the modern
equivalent of Prague Castie, which were voiced in the discussion, are rather absurd in this ¢on-
text, for a commercial centre could never counterbalance the culturally dominant environment
of Prague Castle, which has for a thousand years been the seat of Czech kings as well as the
spiritual centre of the entire city. Furthermore, the planned construction of skyscrapers would
not provide the final solution to the problem. On the contrary, it would reactivate the process, as
ane sky-scraping building wauld anly provake the building of the next one. In the course of several
years this manner of construction could outweigh all others in the southern section of the city,
thus bringing an end to Prague’s thousand-year-old urban structure.

GONCLUSION This short stroll through the Prague of the 1990s has revealed a number of
serious problems that the city is still facing taday. These were also challenging years for the So-
ciety For Old Prague and the ideas with which it was founded over a hundred years ago. Mareover,
this period has left us with a valuable lesson that apparenlly could nol be learnt withaut certain

losses. The role of the Seciety m the process has remained clear - to endeavour to keep the im-
pairments of this turbulent period to @ mimmum. The historic face of the city, however, is a fTagile

image, easily damaged or even broken. The changes in ils struclure are irreversible, and we are, at

every moment, making decisions whose consequences can be measured in centuries.

Prague is presently undergoing a difficult internal test, such as every city of its significance
72 and repute must apparently face at a certain phase in its growth. Some twenly or thirly years



2g0, other European cities experienced very similar periods in their development. They did not
all emerge fram this period successfully, and many of the ance lively historic citics have now
become dead administrative ghettos where the evaryday life that is the true soul of any city has
been [ost. Other cities were irreversibly disfigured by the ill-judged construction of sky-scraping
or oversized buildings within older urban structures of a smaller scalc. As a result, they have |ost
the mast valuable quality of a historic city - its historic urban planning with a clear hierarchy of
squares, streets and small alleys, and its natural relief dominated by towers crowning its temples
and city halls...

We could say that Prague has not yet crossed its Rubicon, The problematic interventions we
mentioned here have not yet reached the scale at which it would be possible Lo speak of a loss of
the city’s historic character. So far - we must add. The level of 4 historic environment's folerance
cen be arrived at Sooner than we think. When this happens, it will be loo late for rectification.

Life in a historic city implies, above all, responsibility - both towards the past generations
who created it, and towards the [ulure generations who we will pass it an o, This responsibil-
ity cannot be renounced by a palitical act or by a loud prociamation driven by a transitory necd
for 2 proposed development. Such action Is shortsighted and very dangerous, far our deeds are
nathing but pearis on the long necklace of the thousand-year-old history of this city. One thing,
however, is clear: if we do not lose our strength or give up hope, what will lay at the end of this
arduous path will be the Intacy, living image of aur city, which Is rightly celebrated as one of the
mos! beautiful in the world.

RICHARD BIEGEL
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